YV V YV VY

I’On Assembly
Board of Trustees Meeting
Monday, September 18, 2023
Board Meeting 6:00 P.M.

AGENDA

Homeowner Forum
Call to Order
Approval of Minutes:
» August 21, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes
President’s Report
» Mount Pleasant Police
» Creek Club Lawsuit meeting at Town Hall
» VOTE to approve She Tris 2024 date
» VOTE to approve request from I’On at Home for Fall Festival
» VOTE to approve CV-9 Committee Recommendations
Treasurer Report
Amenities Report
Infrastructure/Landscape Report
» VOTE to approve proposal from Greenery for phase 1 of marsh trail
enhancement
» VOTE to approve purchase of golf cart
Covenants Report
» VOTE to approve fining of property discussed in executive session
IDC Report
Communications Report
Secretary Report

Adjournment



I’On Assembly Board of Trustees Meeting
August 21, 2023 Board Meeting Minutes

Members Present: Julie Hussey, Bob Adams, Lon Waggoner, Stephen Wood,
Michael Spalding, and Simon O’Shea

Management Company: Emily Simpson
Absent: Mary James

Homeowner Forum: Monika Bonn Miller, 37 Jane Jacobs; Leah Lindemuth, 67
Sanibel; Antonia Fokas, 34 Fernandina; Richard Bondy, 107 Civitas St.; Tara
Plummer, 182 Ionsborough; LaVon McNaughton, 137 Jake’s Lane; Nancy
Carstens, 108 Civitas St.; Richard Bennett, 14 Fernandina; Brian Wildstein, 15
Frogmore; Alex Chalmers, 17 Duany

Guests: Lt. Don Calabrese and Lt. Trevor Simmons from Mt. Pleasant Police
Department

Monika Bonn Miller joined the meeting to inform everyone, that she and Leah
Lindemuth have been speaking with Ginger Black, and they will be bringing back
the community wide yard sale on the first Saturday in November. An ad will be put
in the Post & Courier and will also be posted to Nextdoor.

Richard Bondy joined the homeowners forum to inform the Board that they
temporarily have a window unit AC on the second floor of their garage. The unit
will be in place for a couple of months, as they are working on remediating mold.

Leah Lindemuth joined the meeting to discuss safety, security and crime with the
Lieutenants present from the Mount Pleasant Police Department. Leah followed up
with Emily on the non-working dock cameras, and wanted to know specifically
how long they had not been in operation for. Emily stated that the cameras worked
off and on for a long time, but recently have stopped working. Leah wanted to
know if we are attempting to fix the cameras, and Emily told her that the
Amenities committee has been working very hard at this and in figuring out what
the best solution would be for this area. Simon chimed in and stated that this is
something we have been looking into non-stop for the past two years, and is an
extremely hostile environment and with tenant issues in allowing or helping us
install any equipment to fix the problem. Companies have been out and provided

1



us quotes, and they all involve some sort of cooperation from the tenant in the
Creek Club. Since we are in an active arbitration with the tenant in the Creek Club,
they have been less acquiesce to our request. But we have absolutely been working
on fixing the issue.

Monika asked about installing cameras at the entrances, and wanted to know if it
would be a deterrent for any crimes. Lt. Simmons stated that the cameras at
entrances would not be a deterrent, but more of a tool. Lt. Calabrese mentioned
that cameras are good for evidence but do not prevent things from happening. They
both recommended to remind owners to lock their cars at night and use lights to
deter any crimes. Monika asked the Lieutenants if they recommended
neighborhood watches. Lt. Calabrese said that the purpose of neighborhood
watches was for neighbors to come together to share information, and was highly
popular previously during the time of no cell phones, emails, Nextdoor, etc. Now,
Nextdoor seems to have taken the place of neighborhood watches, as you join your
specific neighborhood and can post alerts to inform other neighbors.

LaVVon McNaughton joined the homeowners forum to ask for an update on the
Creek Club lawsuit and when the Assembly may expect the payment of the funds
and what the total principle amount comes to. Julie stated that the total that has
been set aside is just over $2.1 million, and we are unsure how that amount will be
divided up. Julie informed everyone that we have invited Justin Lucey and his
team to come present to the community on October 19 which will be held at Town
Hall in the Council Chambers, so there is enough space for residents to attend, and
we are expecting everything to be resolved prior to this presentation. Julie stated
that the funds are being held in the court, and there is a tiny amount to collect, but
the rest of it is in place and should not take a long time to receive. Stephen
mentioned that there are a lot of other expenses and fees to be paid from the gross
amount and the check the Assembly will receive will not be near the gross total
amount.

Tara Plummer joined wanting to understand that there are not any additional plans
to add lighting or surveillance throughout the community, and if it is recommended
that owners provide additional lighting and surveillance to their properties.

Before proceeding to the open forum with the Mount Pleasant Police Department,
Julie asked if any other homeowners had any non-safety related questions. LaVon
asked if the outcome of the Creek Club lawsuit would allow us more access to the

Creek Club and Bob stated this does not change as the Assembly has a lease
2



agreement with the current tenant in the Creek Club. And in order for this to
change, the Assembly needs to wait until the initial lease term is up and to pay the
$1million to have the remainder of the lease terminated.

Lieutenant Calabrese thanked the Board for having himself and Lt. Simmons
present at the Board meeting. He proceeded to inform those present about the set-
up of the police department. There are 8 patrol districts and falls on a first line
supervisor and they report to a bureau commander, who then report to a captain.
The department rotates officers in and out of communities, so you get to see
different people and supervisors, in order to not get stuck on the same one person.
Lt. Calabrese stated if anyone sees anything out of place to call them, and to dial
911 instead of the consolidated dispatch center. The dispatch center answers calls
for all of Charleston County, so when you call you get a call taker and as they are
typing it, another dispatcher reads it and dispatches the correct agency. Lt.
Calabrese said they want residents to call for any sort of matter, because it is a
puzzle, and any pieces of information will be helpful in solving crimes. Lt.
Calabrese presented some recent numbers he received from the crime analyst, and
last week in Olde Park there were 2 stolen vehicles both with keys left in them and
doors unlocked, and last month in I’On two vehicles were also stolen, 3 out of the
4 have been recovered and 1 is still outstanding. The police find that the majority
of these cases are because keys are left in cars with doors unlocked. Lt. Simmons
touched on remote keyless entry into cars, and if the key fob is within a certain
proximity of the vehicle, the vehicle can be unlocked and turned on. Monika asked
if keeping the keyless fob in a metal box would help to block the signal. Lt.
Calabrese and Lt. Simmons are not familiar with this approach and have not heard
if it works or not. They also reported that in August there had been a total of 15 car
break -ins Town wide and out of the 15, 13 were unlocked and were in residential
neighborhoods. The MPPD is seeing that when cars are close together, people will
come through and see which cars are unlocked and they are looking for cash, guns
and any high dollar amount items. Leah asked Lt. Calabrese and Lt. Simmons to
speak about gang activity within the community. Lt. Simmons stated that gang
activities have increased and is a sensitive subject dealing with certain areas as it
turns into trying to prove the gang activity. Gang activity doesn’t take more than a
couple of people to form a gang and does not have to have colors or some type of
identity. Richard Bondy asked if he understood them correctly, that if we see
something that should be reported that we call 911, Lt. Calabrese confirmed that
yes, you should dial 911. Richard touched on the fact that typically 911 is called
for a life-threatening emergency and Lt. Simmons that the system will filter the

3



call to a non-life threatening line. The police needs any and all sorts of information
in order to track incidents. Some communities that get hit repeatedly, is because
they do not lock their cars, and the word gets out. Nancy Carstens thanked
everyone, and stated she is looking for a recommendation for security cameras and
lights and asked for when people speak to state their names since she is remote. Lt.
Simmons said ethically they, the police department, cannot provide
recommendations, however, Tara Plummer stated she recently had cameras
installed and will provide the company information to Nancy. Tara mentioned she
had a question about lighting, because there is a park in the back of her property
and it is very dark at night, and asked if it would be recommended to add down
lighting in the trees and asked if it would help be a deterrent. Lt. Calabrese said
that lights are one of the best deterrents for crime. Lon mentioned he understands
being proactive and not reactive by dialing 911, and asked what would be the best
way to educate our residents. Lt. Calabrese said they periodically post about the
9pm routine on Nextdoor, basically to tell people to lock cars, turn on porch lights,
etc, and suggest notifying as many residents as possible of these things. Lon asked
if they are able to talk about an incident that has been reported to MPPD with
pictures, license plate numbers, etc. specifically a vehicle doing donuts in the
Creek Club parking lot. Lt. Calabrese commented that he has all the information
and still needed to do a bit of research, as they need to identify a victim. Bob
informed them that the HOA, I’On Assembly, is the victim in this case. Lon
brought up the ongoing activity in Phase 11 and speeding through the community.
Lt. Calabrese reiterated that it is important to call 911 and report any suspicious
activity. While the Lieutenants were present, Julie mentioned that the HOA owns
the Creek Club, docks and marsh walk and the current tenant hires off duty police
officers for the events and sometimes the information is not clear on how it works
which causes residents to be frustrated. Julie asked when the next citizens police
academy is, and Lt. Calabrese stated it is coming up. Julie praised the program and
encouraged residents to attend the multi-week course. Lt. Simmons stated they are
trying to do a program called Coffee with a Cop, and said they would like to work
together and set something up for the community. Emily will be in touch with Lt.
Calabrese and Lt. Simmons in setting up Coffee with a Cop.

Call to Order: 7:02PM by Julie Hussey



Approval of Minutes:

Bob Adams provided Emily with some amendments to the July 17 meeting minutes.
Stephen Wood made a motion to approve the amended July 17, 2023 1°On
Assembly Meeting Minutes. Bob Seconded. All in favor. Motion passed
unanimously.

President’s Report:

Julie mentioned that the President’s report occurred during the homeowner’s open
forum, when a resident asked about the update for the Creek Club lawsuit.

Julie stated that the CV-9 committee has been meeting regularly and will be having
another meeting to learn more about the property and the data that was collected
from the Preserve I’On website.

Treasurer Report:

Bob pointed out that our legal fees to date total around $72,000 in legal fees, and
have received an additional $38,000 in legal invoices which puts us at $110,000
which is over the budgeted amount of $80,000. This has an impact on whether the
expenses will exceed the budgeted amount and the finance committee is making a
detailed review on the spending. We were also hit with an unexpected increase
above the 15-20% we budgeted for the insurance renewals, and came out to be
$15,000 over the budgeted amount.

Bob mentioned that the committee is just now beginning to work on the
preparation of the draft 2024 budget. Bob pointed out that Emily does the main
work on preparing the draft budget, and the committees plan is to present a
recommended 2024 budget to the Board in the October or November Board
meeting. Bob stated that costs for legal, insurance and landscaping will be
increasing in the 2024 budget, along with the reserve study recommendation of
putting $300,000 into the reserve fund. He wanted to make this known as we
continue to work on the budget.

Julie questioned the current deficit of ($130,918) and Bob mentioned that as of
now the committee is thinking it will be somewhere between $60-$130k, but we
are trying to take a deeper dive into it. What makes it difficult is that some
expenses are paid at the beginning of the year and other expenditures finish in the
middle of year, which makes it difficult to project expenses for the upcoming
months, and as of now we are expecting a shortfall for this year. Stephen and
Michael asked what happens when there is a shortfall and where the funds come
5



from. Bob stated that the funds will come from the reserve account, which will
then be owed back to the reserve account in 2024.

Michael asked how property sales are going in the community. Bob said we are
catching up on the budgeted amount for transfer fees and in July we collected
around $15,000 in transfer fees.

Simon brought up that there are numerous items that need to be budgeted for in
2024 for repairs and/or replacements. There were discussions amongst the Board
about this and Emily reiterated that the capital and reserve budget is approved in
March or April of each year, and the operating budget does not include these types
of projects. Also stated that it will be a multiyear project to update the playgrounds
and several other items that are aging and need to be updated. Bob asked for all the
committees to identify specific issues that need to be addressed.

Michael asked if there is a plan or a resource to use for planning out expenses that
are aging and will need to be addressed in the next couple of year. Emily stated
that this is where the reserve study is extremely helpful, as it lists all the
infrastructure items, along with playgrounds, bulkheads, etc. and their remaining
economic years.

Amenity Report:

Simon reported that the amphitheater and playground subcommittees will
reconvene after summer vacations.

He mentioned last week, American Dock & Marine replaced several severally
rusted bolts at the boat ramp landing, along with a piece of wood that was failing.

Lon asked about the paint on the main dock ramp and that it has gotten worse.
Emily reminded Lon and Simon that the Board decided to wait until the boating
season comes to a close before repainting it, which will still be under warranty.
Simon stated some of the boards might need to be replaced, and Emily said that
replacing any boards will be the only added cost since the paint is still under
warranty, but this is on Emily’s radar to have completed in late October or early
November. Simon also asked if Emily can check with them on the product they
use, because it does not seem to hold up well with the amount of foot traffic we
have at the docks.

Simon reported that numerous wooden boards along the marsh trail have been

replaced. Simon asked Emily about a plan to prune back areas on the trail where it

Is getting narrow and asked if the Greenery walks the trail to prune areas that need
6



pruning. Emily stated that the Greenery had started this week on cutting back areas
where vegetation has been growing into the path causing the path to be narrower in
certain areas. We hope this will be completed no later than the end of next week.
Michael asked about the tree roots and areas on the path that are showing erosion.
Emily informed the Board that the Landscaping committee is aware of this and
have asked the Greenery’s construction team to walk the path and identify ways for
us to prevent the ongoing erosion of the path. Recently, the committee received a
quote to top dress the path which was around $40,000 but instead of spending this
amount of money the Landscape committee agreed it was important to come up
with a plan to help prevent any further erosion.

Lastly, Simon informed the Board that the inspections for the playgrounds will be
completed in September, since the company has been busy with inspecting school
playground inspections.

Landscape and Infrastructure Report:

Julie presented the Landscape and Infrastructure report, and pointed out that the
top dressing of Saturday Rd park and Maybank Green south-side path have been
completed, along with installing the Loropetalum plants in Perseverance Park and
drift roses in the island at Boathouse Close.

Julie touched on the conversations the committee has been having with the
Greenery regarding top dressing the marsh trail. Years ago, when there were less
houses it was easier to transport the gravel to the path, and nowadays it is harder
and more labor intense, which is the reasoning for the high cost. Committee
members are very good at notifying Emily of any issues along the marsh trail.

The committee has been working on getting the best services for our landscaping
contract, such as reviewing other contracts from other companies or a part time
member with horticulture experience. Julie mentioned that our landscape crew has
a new crew leader who used to be a spray technician for the Greenery and is
currently being trained in the new position. It is important that the committee
continues to work with the Greenery to maintaining the beauty of I’On.

Lastly, Julie asked if there is anyone who would be interested to serve on the
Landscape and Infrastructure committee to reach out to Emily. Currently there are
3 members, and there used to be members with engineering experience, which
would be great to have back on the committee.



Covenants Report:

Lon reported that there are currently 23 properties who are actively being sent
violation letters for non-compliance. There has been an increase in response time
to violations once the letters are sent.

A motion was presented to the Board from the committee that was discussed in
executive session, for fining a property for outstanding violations for landscaping
and exterior maintenance $100 a week. Stephen seconded. All in favor. Motion
passed unanimously.

IDC Liaison Report:

Stephen reported that roughly 100 items have been presented to the IDC this year,
and July and August are a little slow due to summer vacations but anticipate the
rate to increase a bit.

Stephen stated that earlier today he had circulated a communication to the Board
which will be sent to residents via email blast and in the newsletter to allow for a
roughly 30-day period for public comment on the revised IDC guidelines. Stephen
mentioned the main changes are reducing sections which were repeated in several
areas of the guidelines, reducing the ambiguity by using the word “should” versus
“must” or “may”. There were no material changes to make any guideline more
restrictive than previously.

Bob stated he appreciates Stephen’s willingness to present the revised guidelines to
the community to obtain feedback and is important to give our residents a say with
these guidelines.

Communications Committee:

Michael mentioned there are 50 additional copies of the 2023 directory, and if you
need one, please pick one up from the I’On Assembly management office.

Michael said owners need to contact Emily to update their contact information for
next years directory.

Lastly, Michael informed the Board that the directory advertising revenue will be
below budget for the year by about $3k-$4k.

Bob mentioned the need for the Board to take a more proactive approach to phase
11, even thought the Assembly is not liable if anything happens. He is aware that
the ’On Company met with the Mount Pleasant Police Department, and the no

8



trespassing signs were removed. He asked if the Board should meet with Vince and
encourage him to somehow secure the area. Some members agreed two Board
members should meet with Vince, while the majority of the Board stated that it
would be best to wait until the issues with CV-9 are clearer and the funds from the
lawsuit had been received.

Secretary: No Report
Other Business:

There being no further business to come before the Board of Trustees, the meeting
adjourned at 8:16pm. The next meeting will be on September 18, 2023 at 6:00PM
and will be held at 159 Civitas Street.

Respectfully submitted by
Michael Spalding, Board Secretary




Executive Dashboard 8.31.23

8

Annual YTD YTD
Summary Prior Year's Actuals Budget Actual Budget
Income Statement 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Aug-23 Aug-23
Assessments 799,025 $ 795350 $ 799,458 $ 914,400 $ 1,066,800 $ 1,143,000 $ 1,257,300 $ 836,000 $ 838,200

Delinquent Dues - 3,675 - - - - $ -
IDC Revenue 21,450 17,450 20,150 34,300 48,475 37,750 35,000 22,450 $ 23,333
Dock Closure Rev 14,700 24,150 21,000 16,800 26,600 39,550 12,600 16,800 $ 8,400

Interest 23,954 22 2 - 6,251 $ -
Misc Income 5,586 11,097 29,099 32,879 17,350 28,367 13,525 15273 $ 7,683
Total Revenue 840,761 $ 851,722 $ 869,708 $ 1,022,333 $ 1,159,246 $ 1,248,668 $ 1,318,425 $ 896,774 $ 877,616
Payroll, Administrative, IDC 261,666 $ 258,941 $ 263,426 $ 286,826 $ 299562 $ 295344 $ 343,988 $ 187,700 $ 225,434
Legal & Professional 39,563 18,749 43,981 48,162 73,979 100,000 80,000 72,871 $ 53,333
Landscaping & Maintenance 360,221 355,058 388,176 422,077 405,154 395,669 458,980 308,175 $ 310,857
Utilities, Insurance, taxes 88,078 90,222 68,153 95,729 138,225 151,116 168,310 146,483 $ 136,239
Reserve Contribution 39,000 41,500 41,500 41,500 192,192 202,033 208,520 208,520 $ 208,520
Capital Projects 46,000 46,000 46,000 62,650 46,367 28,096 50,000 50,000 $ 50,000
Total Expenses 834,528 $ 810,470 851,237 $ 957,994 $ 1,155479 $ 1,172,258 $ 1,309,798 $ 973,749 $ 984,383
Net Surplus 6,233 $ 41,252 $ 18,471 $ 64,339 $ 3,767 $ 76,411 $ 8,627 $ (76,975) $  (106,767)




Amenity Report

September 18, 2023

e During the July board meeting, the Board approved an estimate for the annual
playground inspection. The company will be inspecting our playgrounds on September
20.

e The board has been made aware of several instances of people returning to boats
moored at the community docks and finding that unlocked drawers and containers have
been broken into. Can all boaters ensure they aren’t leaving any valuables on their boats
and are locking up when they leave the boat. If you do witness or experience one of
these break-ins please notify the Mount Pleasant Police Department ASAP.



Landscape & Infrastructure Report

September 18, 2023

The Committee and the Aquatics team are continuing to monitor and treat the algae in
the lakes and canals.

The committee is working with our contract landscapers on reducing the reliance on gas
equipment, which is a long-term goal. Our landscapers have tested non-fossil fuel
equipment and currently, they do not have the capacity to satisfy the needs for a
community of our size. The Committee will continue to keep this topic alive and will
formally revisit our non-fossil fuel goals in advance of renewing the landscaping
contract.

The Greenery top dressed the Saturday Rd Park path and the south-side Maybank Green
path.

The Greenery installed Loropetalum plants in the fountain area in Perseverance Park.
These plants will help shield the visible utility wires and boxes.

Drift roses were installed at the tip of Boathouse Close to add additional color.
Charleston Tree Company pruned the crepe myrtles along Leeann & Faye Lane on
September 12 and 13.

Once the temperatures begin to cool off The Greenery will be proceeding with the
following capital projects, that were approved earlier this year: landscape enhancement
at Sowell/Ponsbury triangle; landscape enhancement in north-west corner of Eastlake;
install another phase of erosion control plants on north end of Eastlake.

The Greenery has replaced the sod on the entrance and exit sides of the main entrance
on N Shelmore.

As plantings have been updated and added across the neighborhood, the Landscape
Committee has spent a lot of time considering different ways to provide the most cost
effective oversight and recommends the Assembly purchase a used golf cart vehicle to
provide the property manager, assistant manager, I’On Design Coordinator, and even
committee members an easy, affordable, and visible way to get out and about within
the neighborhood. VOTE NEEDED

The Landscape Committee and the Greenery are working diligently to address concerns
relating to the marsh trail. After numerous discussions, the project will be broken into
two phases, with the first phase being a clean-up and widening of the walking trail. The
second phase will be a full top dressing of the path, with extra material installed to
cover tree roots and in low laying areas. The Committee has received a proposal for
phase 1 of project and is being presented to the Board for approval. VOTE NEEDED



September 18, 2023 Covenants Committee
Report

Since the start of the year, we have sent 42 properties covenants violation letters. The
majority of these violations include overall maintenance of properties for items such as
mowing, weeding, pressure washing, painting, trash can screening, and landscaping of
right of way strips. To date 27 out of these 42 properties have since come into
compliance. Currently we are actively notifying 15 properties of noncompliance.

The Covenants Team continues to work with the IDC to ensure final inspections and
deposit refund requests are submitted in the 90-day timeframe per the Construction
Deposit Policy. Per the CC&R’s, approved projects must be completed within 12 months
of the approval date. Per the Construction Completion Deposit Policy, if a final inspection
and deposit refund request is not submitted within the timeframe that is permitted for
projects to be completed, the deposit will be deemed forfeited by the applicant to the
Assembly.

Motion to approve the fining of a property as discussed in executive session.



IDC Actions

Month: August 2023

Type # Reviewed #Approved w/o #Approved w/ # Denied
(M/YTD) Conditions Conditions (M/YTD)
(M/YTD) (M/YTD)

Maintenance & Repairs (Apprvd. By NDC) 2/14 2/14
Tree Removal 1/13 0/5 1/8
Minor Exterior Changes 3/28 0/18 2/7 1/3
Minor Landscape Changes 4/15 0/7 2/6 2/6
Major Landscape Changes 1/19 0/3 0/5 1/11
Structural Changes <625 sf 1/22 0/5 0/5 1/12
Structural Changes >625 sf 0/2 0/2
New Home Construction Preliminary Review 0/2 0/1 0/1
New Home Construction Final Review 0/3 0/2 0/1




September 18, 2023 Communications
Report

50 additional copies of the 2023 directories have been delivered to the
street ambassadors along with the management office. If you are in
need of a copy of the 2023 directory, please pick one up from the I'On
Management offices.

The 2024 directory will be sent for publishing in the beginning of
October. If owners need to update their contact information for the

published directory, please submit any updates to Emily by September
30th.





